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POLICE CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

Date Filed: 302

0511312024 ri: a nascannot 1 O[T I 2 - st

Incident (dumber 99-23-0.831
Middle:

Defendant Name Complaint

WILLIAMS

JAWONE sHAKOUR
The acts committed by the accused are described below with each Act of Assembly or statute allegedly violated, if appropriate . VWhen there is more than one offense , each offense should

be numbered chronologically. {Set forth @ briefsummary of the facts sufficient to advise the defendant of the nature of the offense(s) charged. A citation to the statutes; allegedly violated, without more; is not sufriclent. In @ summary ease, you must

cite the specific sectian (s) and subsection(s) of the statutes) or ordinance(s) allegedly violated.

[ TP
tnchoato Attempt SDI'C"E""“@Conspiracy

Offense 18 901 A 18 902 A 18 903 Number of Victims Age 60 or Older



ns,
as

Statute
Description
(Include the
name of the
statute or
ordinance):

Materially false
written
statement

-purchase,

delivery,
transfer of
firearm

Acts of the
accused
associated with
this Offense:

1$-611 1 G4ii - Sale or Transfer of firearms (g) Any person, purchaser or transferee commits @ felony of the third degree i, in connection with the purchase, delivery or transfer of &

firearm under this chapter, he knowingly and intentionally . makes any materially false written statement, including @ statement an any farm promulgated by Federal or State
agencies.

A second or subsequent violation of this section shall be @ felony of the second degree. A person who at the time of sentencing has been .convicted of another offense under this
section shall be sentenced to @ mandatory minimum sentence of imprisonment of five years. A second or subsequent offense shall also result in permanent revocation of any
license to sell , import or manufacture a firearm.

AOPC 412A - Rev. 12121 Fage — of



POLICE CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

OTNI"e can e Ut,. 1*b f -/ Complaint Incident Number 9a-23-083.1
05/1 3/2024 302

N Date Filed;
Dagke Whel



Defendant Name Fst- JAWONE Middle: SHAKOUR st WILLIAM The acts committed by the accused are described below with each Act of Assembly or statute allegedly



violated, if appropriate. WWhen there is more than one offense, each offense should be numbered chronologically.

(Setferih @ brief summary of the facts suffictentto advise the defendant of the nature of the offenses) charged. Acitatlon to the statute(s) aftegedly violated, without more, is not sufficient in @ summary case, you must cite the specific .section (s) and subsection (s) of
the statute(s) or ordinance(s) allegedly violated.

O Attempt Y solicitation

Inchoate Q Conspiracy

Offense 78 901 A 18 902 A 18 903 Number of Victims Age 60 or Older

3 1™ G4t
0

Lead? offense# Section Accident
Subsection

ofthe 18 1 F3 2607

Number H Interstate © safety Zone
PA statute (Title; Counts Grade NCIC Code UCR'NORS Code alely

QO Work Zone
PennDOT Data (if Applicable)

Statute Description ( Include the name of the statute or ordinance):
PACC 903 (a)(1) Criminal Conspiracy

Acts of the accused associated with this Offense:
PACC 903 ( a)(1) Criminal Conspiracy

Inthat THE DNEFENDANT with intant af nramatina ar fanillitatina tha crima of nrovidina matarialh falea writtan _ctatamant _includina A ctatamant an anv farm nromiulaatad hv Fadgrg|

-al

Statute
Description
(Include the
name o€ the



statute or ordinance):
Sale or Transfer of Firearms (First Offense)

Acts of the accused associated with this Offense:

The DEFENDANT, knowingly or intentionally sold, delivered or transferred @ firearm , specifically a $ ig Sauer P320 in violation of Section 6111 (9)(1) of the Pennsylvania Crimes Code,
Act of December 6, 1972, 18 Pa.C.S.-6111(9)(1), as amended.

_of_

I(s) of

Statute
Description
(include the
name of the
statute or
ordinance):
Sale or Transfer
of Firearms
(Subsequent
Offense)

Acts of the
accused
associated with



this Offense:

The DEFENDANT, knowingly or intentionally sold, delivered or transferred @ firearm, specifically @ Glock 17, Ruger 5.7, Glock 23 , Ruger 5.7,Glock 27, Glock 23, Ruger 5.7, Glock 45,

Ruger 5.7, CZ P10C, Glock 30S, F.N. Five-Seven, Glock 19, Glock 33, Glock 20SF, Glock 19, Glock 19, Glock 20, Glock 32, in violation of Section 6111(g)(1) of the Pennsylvania
Crimes Code, Act of December 6, 1972, 18 Pa.C.S.-6111 (q)(1), as amended.

— of—

NT

3y or

Statute
Description (
Include the
name of the
statute or
ordinance):
Firearm
Ownership -
Duty Of Other
Persons

Acts of the



accused associated with this Offense:

The DEFENDANT, sold or transferred a firearm to another unlicensed person and failed to make such transfer at the place of business of a licensed importer, manufacturer, dealer

or county sheriffs office, in violation of Section 6111(c) of the Pennsylvania Crimes Code, Act of December 6,1972, 18 Pa. C.s.-6111 (c), as amender.

Statute
Description (
Include the
name of the
statute or
ordinance):

Sates to Ineligible
Transferee

Acts of the
accused
associated with
this Offense:



The DEFENDANT, knowingly or intentionally sells, delivers or transfers @ firearm under circumstances intended to provide a firearm to any person, purchaser or transferee who is
unqualified or ineligible to control, possess or use a firearm under this chapter commits a felony of the third degree and shall in addition be subject to revocation of the license to sell
firearms for @ period of three years.

A second or subsequent violation of this section shall be & felony of the second degree. A person who at the time of sentencing has been convicted of another offense under this
section shall be sentenced to @ mandatory minimum sentence of imprisonment of five years. Asecond or subsequent offense shall also result in permanent revocation of any

license to sell, import or manufacture a firearm.

of

Statute
Description
(Include the
name of the
statute or
ordinance):
Criminal
Conspiracy Sales
to Ineligible
Transferee

Acts of the
accused
associated with
this Offense:
PACC 903
(a)(1) Criminal
Conspiracy



In that, THE DEFENDANT, knowingly or intentionally sells, delivers or transfers @ firearm under circumstances intended to provide @ firearm to any person, purchaser or
transferee Who is unqualified or Ineligible to control, possess or use a firearm, THE DEFENDANT, did conspire and agree with unknown person(s) that they or one of them would
engage in conduct constituting such crimes, and in furtherance thereof did commit @ violation of Section 903 (a) (1) of the PA Crimes Code.
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Bucks County :Detectives

Office of the Fucks County District Attorney
99-23-0s31

Affidavit of Probable Cause

Attachment A

Your Atflant, Detective Jeffrey Jumper 9,9944, of the Bucks County Detectives/ Bucks
County District Attorney's Office, has been duly sworn/ appointed/ employed as a
Police Officer in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania since 2011. Your Affiant is certified
as a Police Officer ill Pennsylvania and is authorized to conduct criminal investigations
and make arrests in . 211 criminal cases within Bucks County, Pennsylvania and is
currently serving in the Gun Violence Task Force Unit (GVTF). "I'nrcungh the course of
my twelve ( 12) year career, | have investigated all facets of criminal activity, including,
but not limited to, Criminal llomicide,.ltape, Robnery, Aggravated Assault, and Firearm
investigations..

Your Affiant is an "investigative or law enforcement ot:ficer" within the meaning of
section 570)2 of Pennsylvania Wiretapping and Electronic Surveillance Act and in, such
capacity, your Afl'iant successl'ully completed wiretapping and electronic surveillance
training as mandated in Section 5724 of Title 18 PA. C.S.A. As a result, your Aftiant has
-received his class "A" certification (Certification. Number A-6961) to monitor, utilize,
maintain, and possess electronic surveillance equipment.

Your afiiant; Special Agent Erie Frye, being duly sworn, deposes and says. | am a
Special Agen_ employed by the Pennsylvania Office of the Attorney General in the GLn
Violence Task Force. investigate violations of the .Pennsylvania Crimes Code including
Violations of the Uniform. f=irearms Act. Prior to working with the Gun Violence Task
Force, | vas employed by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF) as a
Special Agent fn= July 2001 until October 20121. During my time with ATF, | authored
hundreds of search and arrest warrants, most notably in the area of firearms trafficking
and straw purchasing.

The facts set.forth in this affidavit are based upon your Aff7ant's personal knowledge;
knowledge obtained from. other individuals/entities during my participation in _ his
investigation, ineluding other law enforcement personnel; review of documents and
records related to this investigation; communications with otliers who have personal.



knowledge of the events and circumstances described herein; as well as information
gained through my training and experience..

Because this affidavit is being prepared for the sole purpose of establisl_ing probable
cause, not every fact nor detail of the below investigation has been incorporated into
same.

101



PAPERWORK ASSOCIATED WITH PURCHASING A FIREARM



When a person wants to purchase a handgun within the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, they must meet the following requirements: be twenty-one (2 1)
years of age or older, present some form of state identification, and pass an
instant background check referred to as a Pennsylmania Instant Check System
(PICS). The PICS check ensures the prospective buyer is not precluded by law
from owning a handgun.

Next, the Federal Firearm License (FFL).dealers are required by law to complete
two (2) and, if applicable, three (3) different forms. The first form is the
Pennsylvania State Police, Application/Record of Sale (SP-4-113). This form
documents the purchaser's name, date of birth, age, gender, race, height, weight,
address, Pennsylvania ID number and employer information, which the buyer
supplies the information. There are four (4) "yes or no" questions the buyer must
answer and two (2) separate signature lines. This form also documents the FFL
dealer, employee's, and handgun information.

Another required form is the U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Alcohol,
Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) form (ATF Form 4473). "Section A" of
this form details the buyer's name, current address, place of birth, height, weight,
gender, date of birth, ethnicity, and race. There are several "yes or no" questions,
including those about the buyer's competency, -.rimina. history, drug use,
immigration status, and history with domestic violence that the buyer -m:st answer
and a signature line. The purchaser attests that he or she is not a prohibited
person_ and is the actual buyer/transferee. "Section 13" of this form is completed
by the FFL dealer that notes the type of firearm, the identification presented by
the buyer, the date of purchase and other transactional information. "Section C" of
this form documents the firearm information, such as the manufacturer, model,
serial number, type and caliber/gauge of :he firearm. The completed and signed
ATF Form 4473 serves as the authorization for the FFL to initiate a fireari s
eligibility check through the National Instant Criminal Background Check System
(NICS;.

In the event. of aperson intending to purchase multiple firearms at the same time,
the FFL dealer must complete a U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Alcohal,
Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) form named Report of Multiple Sale or
Other Disposition of Pistols and Revolvers, (ATF Form 3310.4). The FFL dealer
documents the type, serial number, manufacturer, model, importer, caliber, and
transfer date of all the firearms purchased by the buyer.

If a private citizen wants to sell a handgun to another private citizen, both the
transferor and the transferee must complete both the ATF 4473 form and the



SP4-11= form, and.both must pass a background check. Transfers of long guns
(those with lengths exceeding those set forth -- n the definition of "firearm" in 18
Pa.C.S. b 102) involving an FFL (either as buyer or seller, or as intermediary) are
still subject to a background check, and the ATF 4-473 form must still be
completed by the transferor and transferee, but the SP 4-113 does not. On the
other hand. private citizens not engaged "in the business" of firearm sales may
buy/se-11/trade long guns among each other as long as they are not prohibited
under state or federal law.



STRAW PURCHASE



A "straw purchase" is an illegal firearms transaction that occurs when the actual
buyer of a firearm uses another person, a " straw purchaser," as an intermediary to
execute the required paperwork to purchase a firearm from a federally licensed
firearms dealer (FFL). A "straW purchaser" is a person with a clean criminal
background who purchases firearms specifically on behalf of a person to conceal
the true ownership of the firearm. The true owner of the fireG--rn is commonly
prohibited from purchasing a firearm because he or she is a convicted felon,
domestic violence misdemeanant, juvenile, mentally ill individual, or other person
prohibited under federal or state law.

THE TARGET OF THIS INVESTIGATION

Jawone WILLIAMS, the target of the investigation, reportedly resides at 2123
Moore Street, Philadelphia, PA 19145. WILLIAMS is a black male approximately
51" tall. WILLIAMS. date of birth is July 1, 1992. Law Enforcement databases
indicate WILLIAMS, lists 2123 Moore Street, Philadelphia, PA. 19145 as his
residence. On every firearm purchase form (ATF 473/SP 4-113), WILLIAMS lists
2123 Moore Street, Philadelphia, PA 19145 as his residence. In speaking with
WILLIAMS, via phone, he has confirmed his address to be 2123 Moore Street,
Philadelphia, PA 19145.

A search of the Pennsylvania State Police Central Repository showed.that
Jawone WILLIAMS has no criminal history. WILLIAMS is legally allowed to
purchase firearms in Pennsylvania.

WILLIAMS has purchased twenty (20) firearms from various Federal Firearm
Licensed dealers (FFL'S) in Bucks County, Montgomery County, Philadelphia
County, Delaware County M16 Lehigh County between the dates of 7/14/2019
and 5/22/2022. Of the twenty (20) firearms purchased by WILLIAMS, thirteen (
13) were purchased in Bucks County, PA; ( 10) ten from Johnston's Sporting
Goods, 715 State Road, Croydon, PA 19021, two (2) from MEGA Pawn, 334-336
W. Bridge Street, Morrisville, PA 19067, and one (1) from Classic Pistol, 1310
Industrial Boulevard, Southampton, PA 18966.

On October 17, 2023, a report was generated on WILLIAMS by Detective Jumper
which initially revealed six (6) of the twenty (20) firearms purchased by WILLIAMS
to have been recovered by law enforcement. Based upon the discovery of the
recovered firearms made by police and other criminal indicators, Detective Jumper
opened an investigation into the suspected "straw purchase" of firearms
committed by Jawone WILLIAMS.

On February 8, 2024, Detective Jumper was contacted by Pennsylvania Office of



the Attorney General, S.A. Eric Frye, regarding another firearm recovery
belonging to WILLIAMS that had been recovered by the Ashland Borough Police
Department, 401 South 18th Street, Ashland, PA 17921, on January 31, 2024.
This discovery brought the current total number of recoveries o nine (9).



For the purposes of this affidavit of probable cause, your affiant's, for reference



and convenience, have cited the events and actions that occurred during this
investigation as incidents . Included within the incidents are the dates and
locations 3f the firearm purchases, as well as the circumstances surrounding the
nine (9) recovered firearms. The firearm purchase information was determined
after reviewing the State and Federal records from each Federally License
Firearm Dealer. To date, none of the twenty firearms purchased by WILLIAMS
have been reported stolen or transferred.

INCIDENT NUMBER ONE — JULY 14, 2019

On July 14, 2019, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased the following handgun at
Double Action. located at 611 Industrial Park, Yeadon, PA 19050, Delaware
County.

1. Sig Sauer Model P320, 40ea1, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number 58A040936.

Jawone Williams indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he purchased
the firearm for himself and not another individual.

FIREARM RECOVERY -- FEBRUARY 7.2022
Time To Crime (TTC): 940 Days

On February 7, 2022, the Philadelphia Police Department arrested |.M. for
violations of the Uniform Firearms Act (VLTFA). Phila. PD initiated a stop on a
vehicle, R.M. exited the rear passenger side with a black firearm in his right hand.
Philadelphia Police Officer Kology chased R.M. in the park with the firearm still in
his right hand. Ofc. Kology observed R.M. discard the black firearm in a wooded
area of the park. After apprehending R.M., Ofc. Kology went back to where he
observed R.M. discard the firearm and recovered a black Sig Sauer .40 serial
ff58A040936.

INCIDENT NUMBER TWO — JUNE 24, 2021

On June 24, 2021, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased the following handgun at
Founding Father's Ouffitters , located at 9280 Ridge Pike, Lafayette Hill, PA 19444,
Montgomery County, through a private party transfer, acquired from Joseph
Braverman.

2. Glock Model 17, 9MM, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Dumber BFKT111.

Jawone Williams indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he aurchased
the firearm for himself and not another individual.

FIREARM RECOVERY — JULY 6, 2021
TTC: 13 Days



On July 6, 2021, Philadelphia Police Officer 's observed a 2010 Gre* Honda
Accord with RA, Temp Tag : 3501-097 with an expiration date of 7-2-21, parked
outside of residence 2847 Amber St, with the engine running, dark tinted windows,
and unoccupied. ?olice were able to determine the PA Temp tag was fraudulent
due to the letter "P" being capitalized where it should have been

4



lowercase. Police recorded the VIN: | HGCP3F88AA002888 and relayed the



information to the district operations room personnel who determined the vehicle
was is s:olen status in NCIC/PCIC under OCA: 3021001543 out of Wilmington,
DE. Police then opened the doorto process the vehicle and recovered a black
9mm Glock 17 Gen 5 serial number BFKT111, with (18) live rounds including one
in the chamber on top of the driver's seat.

A significant factor when determining whether an individual is conducting straw
purchases. your Affiants must consider the time the firearm was purchased in
relation to when the firearm has recovered. In this instance, WILLIAMS purchased
the Glock model 17, on June 24, 2021.. Thirteen days later, on July 6, 2021, the
Glock model 17 was recovered by law enforcement inside a stolen vehicle.

INCIDENT NUMBER THREE- JUNE 26, 2021

On June 26, 2021, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased the following handgun at E.F.
Precision: 230= Computer Ave., Willow Grove PA 19090, Montgomery County,
through a private party transfer, acquired from Nichola Walker.

3. Ruger Model 57,5.7x28, semi-automatic pistol, Serial Number 641-14137

WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he purchased
the f=irearm for himself and not another individual.

INCIDENT NUMBER FOUR — JUNE 2'7.2021

On June 27, 2021, at. approximately 1311 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased
the following handgun at Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 715 State Road,
Croydon PA 19021, Bucks County, through a private party transfer, acquired from
Ronald Schatz. .

4. Glock Model 23 Gen 4, .40 Cal, semi-automatic pistol whh Serial
Number BKLA437.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, :hat he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. WILLIAMS listed his
occupation as a security officer with Securitas.

INCIDENT NUMBER FIVE — JUNE 28, 2021.

On June 28, 2021, at approximately 1409 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased
the following handgun at.Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 715 State Road,
Croydon PA 19021, Bucks County.

5. Ruger Model 57, 5.7x28mm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number 642-20473.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, :hat he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. WILLIAMS listed his



occupation as a security officer with Securitas.



INCIDENT NUMBER SIX — JULY 7, 2021



On July 7, 2021, at approximately 1419 hours, Jawone Williams purchased the
following handgun at Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 715 State Road, Croydon
PA 19021, Bucks County.

6. Glock Model 23, . 40 Cal, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number BSRF744.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, _hat he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. Williams listed his
occupation as a security with Securitas.

FIREARM RECOVERY -- October 20, 2022
TTC: 470 Days

On October 20, 2022, members of the Philadelphia Swat Team executed a search
on several residences within Philadelphia. At approximately 0615 hours,
Philade[phia Swat conduced a search on a residence located at 3152 Weymouth
Street, Philadelphia, P.A. The search resulted in the recovery of a black leather
style bag. containing ( 1) loaded Glock bearing serial number HUL589, ( 1) loaded
Glock 23 bearing serial number BSRF744 with a 40-caliber magazine loaded with
(45) rounds of ammunition, ( 1) Ruger 9mm, ( 1) Taurus 38 caliber bearing serial
number AAL061522, and a box of 380 caliber ammunition. Police recovered $
124,211 USC, blue pills, suspected fentanyl, and a blue glassine baggie stamped
with "DEBQ" containing a white substance of.suspected heroin. R.R. and N.R.
were present during the search and subsequently arrested.

INCIDENT NUMBER SEVEN — JULY 8, 2021

On July 8, 2021, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased the following handgun at MEGA
PAWL, 3-3 6 W. Bridge, Morrisville PA 19067, Bucks County, through a private
party transfer, acquired from Christopher Williams.

7. Glock Model 27 Gen 4, .40 Cal, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number UYK898.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, hat he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual.

INCIDENT NUMBER EIGHT — AUGUST 2, 2021

On August 2, 2021, at approximately 1417 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased
the following handgun at Delaware Valley Sports Center Inc., 101 Geiger Road,
Philadelphia PA 19115, Philadelphia.

8. Ruger Model 57, 5.7x28, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number 643»17529.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, _hat he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual.



FIREARM RECOVERY —January 31, 2024



TTR: 912 Days



1.

Ashland Police Department was dispatched to Red White and Blue Auto for the
report of a firearm that was found in a vehicle. The complainant stated that they
purchased the vehicle from the Manheim Auction on 10/17/2023. While they were
detailing the vehicle, they located a gun under the seat. The Ashland PD took
custody of the firearm, a Ruger model 57, bearing serial number 643-17529.

INCIDENT NUMBER NINE — AUGUST 27, 2021

On August 27, 2021, at approximately 1309 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased
the following handguns at Johnstons. Sporting Goods LLC., 715 State Road,
Croydon PA 19021, Bucks County. One of the firearms purchased, the Glock
model 45, was done through a private party transfer, acquired from Abiam Torres.

9. Glock Model 45, 9mm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Dumber
BNLL751. 10. Ruger Model 57.5.7x28inm, semi-automatic pistol wi-h

Serial Number 64322311

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale. that.he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual.

***it should be noted over the course of sixty-four (64) days, WILLIAMS
purchased nine (9) firearms, four (4) of which were the exact same make and
model firearm, a Ruger Model 57 and five (5) Glocks were purchased by
WILLIAMS, three (3) .40cal and two (2) 9mm models.***

INCIDENT NUMBER TEN — OCTOBER 16, 2021

On October 16, 2021, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased the following handgun at
Philadelphia Training Academy, 831-33 Ellsworth Street, Philadelphia, PA
19147, Philadelphia, through a private party transfer, acquired from Jonathan
Teng.

CZ Model P-10 C, 9rnm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number C680635.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he
purchased the frearm for himself and not another individual. WILLIAMS listed his
occupation as a security guard with Securitas. Mr. Williams provided the F L
(Phila. Training Academy) with his PA Driver's License, social security card, and
a debit card with his name on it.

INCIDENT NUMBER ELEVEN —NOVEMBER 4, 2021.

On November 4, 2021, at approximately 1408 hours, Jawone Williams purchased
the following handgun at Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 715 State Road,
Croydon PA 19021, Bucks County.



12. Glock Model G30S, ;45 Cal, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number BVAY138.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. Williams did not list

an employer or occupation.



FIREARM RECOVERY— APRIL 14, 2422



TTC: 161: Days

On April 14, 2022, at approximately 5:25 pm, Philadelphia Police Officers
responded to the area of 3400 North Braddock Street for the report of a shooting.
Upon their arrival, they located a which consisted of several damaged vehicles as
a result of a car acc_de.it, ten ( 10) 9mm fired cartridge casings (FCC), a .45
caliber Glock handgun, and a black 223 assault rifle. As pclice were approaching
the crime scene, they were flagged down by a pedestrian who stated that there
were three males in the alleyway between the houses on the 3300 hundred block
of Braddock Street. Officer approached the alleyway and located three males.
One of the males, later identified as G.R., was suffering from a single gunshot
wound to the left shoulder and. back. He was transported to Temple ER and
treated for his injuries.

The other two males were identified as M.R. and T.H. A.search of the :
mmediate area by =he Officers revealed a Black .45 caliber Glock handgun,
serial number D VAY 138 with an empty magazine. The firearm was swabbed for
DNA and placed on the property receipt.

INCIDENT NUMBER TWELVE — NOVEMBER 15, 2021

On November 15, 2021, at approximately 1520 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS
purchased the following handgun at Johnstons Kayton Company, 1045 Grape
Street, Whitehall, PA 18052, Lehigh County, through a private party transfer,
acquired from Alberto Mantes.

13. FN Model Five-Seven, 5.7x28, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number 386440352.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. WILLIAMS listed his
occupation as security.

FIREARM RECOVERY -- FEBRUARY 4, 2022
TTC: 81 Days

On February 4, 2022, the Pocono Mountain Regional Police Department
recovered the FN Model Five-Seven bearing serial number 386400352 after a
complainant reported find_ng it on the side of the roadway while removing snow.
(Ref IR 422-001258;

INCIDENT NUMBER THIRTEEN - NOVEMBER 18, 2021

On November 18, 2021, at approximately 1616 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS
purchased the following handgun at Johnstons Kayton Company, 1045 Grape
Street, Whitehall, PA 18052, Lehigh County, through aprivate party transfer,



acquired from Alberto Mantes.
14. Glock. Model 19 Gen 5, 9mm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number BMFT897.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual.



INCIDENT NUMBER FOURTEEN — DECEMBER 11, 2021



On December 11, 2021, at approximately 1232 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS
purchased ahe following handgun at Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 715
State Road, Croydon PA. 19021, Bucks County.

.15. Glock Model 33,357, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number FWK625.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he
purchased the =irearm for himself and not another individual.

INCIDENT NUMBER FIFTEEN -- JANUARY 20, 2022

On January 20, 2022, at approximately 1416 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased
the following handgun at Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 715 State Road,
Croydon PA 19021, Bucks County.

16. Glock Model 20SF, 10mm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number BVXX867.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, tha= he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. Williams did not list
an employer or occupation cr. the SP 4-113 form.

INCIDENT NUMBER SIXTEEN — FEBRUARY 5, 2022

On February 5, 2022, at approximately 1610 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased
the 'ol[owing handgun at MEGA PAWN, 336 W. Bridge, Morrisville PA 19067,
Bucks County.

17. Glock Model 19 Gen 3, 9mm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number AFYKO061.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. Williams listed his
occupation as a security officer with Allied Security.

FIREARM RECOVERY — DECEMBER 20, 2022
TTC: 318 days

On December 18, 2022, Philadelphia Police Department (PPD) responded to the
area oi' N Hutchinson Street for the report of a shooting. Upon arrival, officers
located a crime scene on the highway of 800 W. Tioga Street consisting of six (6)
9mm FCCs and a black 2010 Chrysler Town & Country minivan that appeared to
have been struck multiple times by gunfire. A.short time later, officers learned of a
36-year-old male that had arrived at Temple Hospital sui.iering from multiple
gunshot wounds to the back. On December 20, 2022, the Philadelphia Po ice
Department arrested J.P. for violations of the Uniform Firearms Act (VUFA). A
search. of .. P.'s residence resulted in the recovery of a Glock Model 19 bearing



serial number AFYKOG6I loaded with twenty (20) live 9mm rounds and was
equipped with a laser sight attachment. Two handguns, a rifle, ballistic vest, and
ammunition were recovered from the residence. In an



interview, E.P. admitted to owning the guns found inside the home and to



buying them on the Street.
INCIDENT NUMBER SEVENTEEN — FEBRUARY 15, 2022

On February 15, 2022, at approximately 1534 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS
purchased the following handgun at Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 715
State Road, Croydon.PA 19021, Bucks County.

1.8. Glock Model 19, 9mm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number BVTK869.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, tha-- he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual. Williams did not list
an employer or occupation on the SP 4-113 form.

FIREARM RECOVERY -- NOVEMBER 27, 2022
TTC: 284 days

On 11/27/2022, Philadelphia Police arrested E.R. for VUFA at 2430 Castor Ave
Phila, PA. A search of E.R.'s vehicles resulted in the recovery of a . 9mm Glock,
wish an obliterated serial # (766.22-002237), a . 9mm Glock, model 19, bearing
serial #BVTK869 and a.40 cal Glock, model 22, bearing serial #/WPM428. A
NIBIN trace report was generated which linked WILLIAMS firearm, Glock 19,
bearing serial number BVTK869 to a shooting that occurred in Philadelphia on
11/6/2022, no injuries were reported.

INCIDENT NUMBER EIGHTEEN — MARCH 24, 2022

On March 24, 2022, at approximately 1319 hours,. Jawone WILLIAMS purchased
the following handgun at Johnstons Sporting Goods LLC., 71.5 State Road,
Croydon PA 19021, Bucks County.

19. Glock Model 20, 10mm, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number . BWMS533.

Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that he
purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual.

FIREARM RECOVERY -- MAY 1, 2022
TTC: 39 Days

On May 1, 2022, the Upper Darby Township Police Department arrested E.A. for
receiving stolen property, carrying a firearm w/o a license, and prohibited
offensive weapons. During the execution of a search warrant on E.A.'s vehicle, a
Glock bearing serial numberBWMS533 was recovered. from his vehicle.

INCIDENT NUMBER NINETEEN -- MAY 22, 2022
On May 22, 2022, at approximately 1319 hours, Jawone WILLIAMS purchased



the following handgun at Classic Pistol, 1310 Industrial Boulevard,
Southampton, PA 18966, Bucks County, through a private party transfer,
acquired from Kyle Weidner.
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20. Glock Model 32,357 SIG, semi-automatic pistol with Serial Number



GHZ289. Jawone WILLIAMS indicated, on the Application/Record of Sale, that
he purchased the firearm for himself and not another individual.

On January 4, 2024, Detective Jumper attempted to speak with WILLIAMS at his
address at 2123 Moore Street, Philadelphia, PA. WILLIAMS was not home at the
time of the visit, however a relative was able to provide Detective Jumper with a
contact number for which he could be reached. WILLIAMS was contacted, via
phone, shortly thereafter. WILLIAMS confirmed his identity and stated that he was
currently at work and unable to talk. When asked if Williams lived at the 733 N
43rd Street address, WILLIAMS stated he lived at his aunt's house at 2123 Moore
Street. Detective Jumper asked Williams if he owned any firearms to which he
stated he did. Detective Jumper scheduled a meeting with WILLIAMS for a later
date, which he never showed up for.

Through investigation YourAffant identified Jawone William's cousin, Shereef
Gray. Mr Gray was arrested on August 22, 2022, and pleaded guilty to 6111 G4ii
(F3) and 61110 1. Mr. Gray admitted to buying the handgun for his cousin, Tyshan
Franklin, which is a straw purchase. Mr. Gray resides at the same address as Mr.
Williams.

Over the course of the next several months, several in person and wrtual
meetings were scheduled with WILLIAMS, however on the dates of all the
scheduled meetings, WILLIAMS failed to appear.

On February 19, 2024, your Affiant looked through Record of Sale and ATF 4473
forms anc attempted to search for any phone numbers that were provided by
WILLIAMS during the time at which the firearm was purchased. Two transactions
were located where WILLIAMS had provided the phone number, (267) 257-6843,
to the FFL dealer. Pursuant to a search warrant, cellular phone records for the
phone number (267) 257-6843 were provided by T Mobile and an analysis was
conducted. Due to record retention periods stretching beyond T Mobile's date
range, only two of the twenty purchases made by WILLIAMS wefe captured. The
two dues on which WILLIAMS purchased firearms, 3/24/22 and 5/22/22, were
analyzed using the location data provided by T Mobile: The locations in
conjunction with the times of purchase put the cellular device within the area of
Classic Pistol ( Southampton, PA) and Johnston Sporting Goods (Croydon, PA).

On March 25, 2024, Detective Jumper spoke with WILLIAMS, via phone, who
stated that he was at work at the moment and was unable to speak. Your Aff ant
asked WILLIAMS if he was working for the employer, MAXIM. WILLIAMS
confirmed stating, " yes." Detective Jumper asked WILLIAMS if he had a chance



to look for the firearm that we spoke about. WILLIAMS replied, "yea, I'll be able
to answer that once I'm off" WILLIAMS alLuded to the fact .hat he was unable to
answer any questions because he was inside a patient's home.
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On April 4, 2024, MAXIM Health Services confirmed that WILL-. AMS was in fact



an employe:, with their company but hadn't worked a shift after November 1. 7.
2023. Per employee records,. WILLIAMS listed.the phone number (609)
41.8-3616 as his contact number. Through the course of the investigation,
WILLIAMS appears to have been utilizing three different phone nainbers. The
phone number (267) 257-6843 was provided by WILLIAMS on the ATF 4473
Zorms.. The phone number (267) 366-9664 was provided by a relative of
WIL-TAMS and used as tae primary number to communicate with him. The phone
number (6.09) 418-3616 was prov ded by his former employer, MAXIM Health
Services, as the contact number listed in his employee record.

Detective Jumper contacted the sellers/transferor's associated with .he handgun
sales irvolving WILLIAMS. Out of the rive (5) sellers that your Affiant contacted,
each one reported|*,sold their handguns through the website Arms]ist.com. One
setter was able: to locate the email associated with the transaction and provided
yourAffiant with the buyer's email address: iaavoiiewilliams('i7)s;mail.com. The
same seller also provided your Affiant with the buyer's phone number, (267)
257-6843 which he used in conjunction witli the email address to communicate
with WILLIAMS.

On May 13, 2024, subsequent to a search warrant, Armslist.com provided
yourAftiant's with subscriber information associated with the account user name
" Wone" with the registered email address, jawonewilliamserii') i;nlail.com. Billing
information provided, listed the name, Jawone Williams, with the address of 212’
Moore Street, Philadelphia, PA : 914-5.

In conjunction with the subscriber/biking information received, messaging history
was also provided. From 6/24/2021 through 5121/2022, WILLIAMS messaged.
approximately 11.0 sellers through the Armlist website inquiring if the handguns
posted were still available for purchase. In reviewing the messaging history,
WILLIAMS would make up to seven inquiries a day to different sellers checking the
availability of firearms. Armslist records indicate WILLIAMS account was created
on 6/24/2021, following the creation of the account WILLIAMS messaged a seller
stating; "Hev I'i7i inli-,resIG'd in buyiflg this A.S SIP please link if you ,still have it."
On 11;11.120'21 user "alone" messaged user " ltrunk69" asking if a firearm was
still available. ".Jser "Jtrunk 69" responded, " Only looking.far trade really | don Y
tech to get rhi (?f it unless something catches m ., eye. " User " Wane" replied, "oh
ok onty thwg | have at the moinuniis a C: p]Oc." On 1/15/2022, user "Wone" would
again message user " ltrunk69" stating, "locticing to huv asap. " It should be noted
that WILLIAMS purchased twelve handguns prior to. contacting user " Itrunk69."
and was still the registered. owner of said handguns. WILLIAMS LIA would
repeatedly message sellers indicating that lie needed the handguns ASAP and



would often try to negotiate for a. lower price.

In summary, when investigating potential straw purchasers, yourAffiant's must
consider several indicators when deciding whether to.pursue an investigation.
Basee on your Affiant's training and experience, WILLIAMS displayed several
indicators of a straw purchaser. One indicaror considered was based upon the
acquisition of numerous firearms within a short period c-f time. WILLIAMS
purchased a total of twenty (20) firearms with nineteen ( 19) of the lwrearnis being
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purchased between June. 2021 and Marcli 2022 (273 days) , Another
factor your Affrant's rr t. consider is the number of recovered firearms



, in this case, nine f f) firearms of the twenty (2Uj firearms putxliased
by WILLIAMS were recovered , In reviewing the police reports
associated with thcnxoveries, every firearm recovered was outside
the possession/control of WTLLfA-?,1S,

In the totality Of the above straw purchase indicators and
circumstan=, Supervising Special Agent Christopher Marnna of the
Pennsylvania Office of the Attorney Ceeneral Gun Viola= Task
Force can conclude and would ofTcr an expert opinion that.awone
Williams N%w straw purchasing firearms with die specific intent to
illegally transfer those guns to ather perscns.

Your Honor, based on the facts set forth , Your Affiant's respcetfWy
request a warrant be issued for the defendant to answer to the
aforementioned charges_

We, Detective Jeffrey Jumper 49944 and Special agent Eric Frye,
being duly swam ac=din, to law, depose and say flint the facts set
forth in the foregoing afrtidavit are true and correct to the best of our
knowledge, information, and belief.

We certify that this filing complies with the provisions of the Case,
Records Public Access Policy of the Unified Judicial System of
Pennsylvania that require fling confidential information acrd
documents differently than non-confidential information and
documents.

The Honorable Judge

-r1995'y

per 6 131-Y
Detectives Date

J, .7

Special ent Eric Frye Dare

Penrtsyl is Office of the

DAY OF JUNE 2024
Attom".ey General SWORN

TO AND SUBSCR1B



Inv aLJ+C7+|E:
..E 1 «Ei-d. - firm' t?0g

G+W-3036



